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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of

Gramos Ghemicals lndia Private Limited

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements mos
Ghemicals lndia Private Limited ("the Comp?hy"), which comprises the eet
as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including stve
lncome), Statement of Changes in equity and the Gash Flow
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a su ry

year
nificant

accounting policies and other explanatory information

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and planations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the i n by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required grve true and fair view in
conformity with the Companies (lndian rds) Rules, 2015, as
amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting pri accepted in lndia, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at M , its Loss, total comprehensive
income, Changes in equity and its Cash r ended on that date

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further
Standalone Financial

e Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
section of our report. We are independent of the

Company in acco
Accountants of I

of the financi under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have nt and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the

al Results,

3. Other than Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

ompany's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
tn rmation. The other information comprises the information included in the Board's
Report including annexures to the Board Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. ln connection with
our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statennents or our knowledge obtained during the co our audit or

Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit

Rules t

2
othenruise appears to be materially misstated
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lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

4. Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the p

standalone financial statements to give a true and fair view of
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia,
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
accounting records in accordance with the provisio
assets of the Company and for preventing and d
selection and application of appropriate accou
estimates that are reasonable and prud
maintenance of adequate internal financial
ensuring the accuracy and

n

of

n rdance
Accounting

the Companies
of adequate

safeguarding the
other irregularities;

making judgments and
n, implementation and

fra

nd

preparation and presentation of the
fair view and are free from material

ln preparing the standalone
assessing the Company's
applicable, matters re
accounting unless
operations, or has no

Those Board of
reporting

were operating effectively for
nting records, relevant to the

a statements that give a true and
ether due to fraud or error.

management is responsible for
ue as a going concern, disclosing, as

cern and using the going concern basis of
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

a ative but to do so

also responsible for overseeing the company's financial

5. Aud bility for the audit of the Financial Statements

Ou are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is igh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

rdance with Sas will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sas, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

...3,..
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a

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of i

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in ign

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 4 (3Xi)

of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for exp o on
whether the company has adequate internal financial
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

in place and

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made man

Conclude on the appropriateness of manag the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the o ned, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as . lf we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are requi ntion in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the fina or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor' r, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall , structure and content of the financial statements,
whether the financial statements represent theincluding the

underlying tra events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

Materiality of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, indiv o aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reaso geable user of the standalone financial statements may be

nsider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
udit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
entified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

unicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
ned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

nificant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

infl

S

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on Our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

4
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A) As required by the Gompanies (Auditor's Rep-ort). Order, 2020 ("the Order"), iss,ued
' bt the CentraiGouernm6nt of lnbta in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the

A'ct, we give in the 'Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

B) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

thea.

b.

We have sought and obtained all the information and exp
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the pu

ln our opinion proper books of account as required by
pany so far as it appears from our examination

lanatio

kept by the
except for

2h(vi) below.

including Other
and the Cash Flow

the books of accounts

comply with the Accounting

Com
certain matters in respect of audit trail as

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of
Comprehensive lncome, Statement of C
Statement dealt with by this Report are

d. ln our opinion, the aforesaid fina
Standards specified under

e. On the basis of written reP

31,2024 and taken on
disqualified as on
Section $aQ) of

f. The lati
connected
above on

g

from the Directors as on March
of Directors, none of the directors is

being appointed as a director in terms of

the maintenance of accounts and other matters
pect of audit trail are as stated in paragraph 6B

er section 143(3Xb) of the Act and ParagraPh 6B

state

c. a
n

i.

below under Rule 1 1(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)

to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer

separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal

ncial controls with reference to standa lone financial statements

The Company being a Private Limited company and hence the provisions of
Section 197 ol the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

Accordingly, we are not required to and have not reported other matters to be

included iri tne Auditor's report in accordance with the requirements of section

197(16) of the Act; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

(b)
(iXvi)

e
**

o.; CIIARTIRID

given to us:
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The Company has disclosed the impact if any, of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements'

ln our opinion and as per the information and explanations provided to us the

Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative
contiacts, requiring provision under applicable laws or accounting standards
for material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be rred,

to the lnvestor Education and Protection Fund by the

iv, (a) The management has represented that, to the best and

belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts have been

advanced or loaned or invested (either from
premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreig
the understanding, whether recorded in

intermediary shall, directly or indirectly r

entities identified in any manner
("ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide a
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiari

(b) The management has
belief, as disclosed in the
by the Company from
("Funding Parties"),
otherwise, that
persons or
funding party
the like on be

(c)

tampered with in respect of the accou
em ployee reimbu rsement software.

fu or share
ny to or in any

iaries"), with
rwise, that the

in other persons or
on behalf of the Company
, security or the like on

U,q
e?

.,; CHARTIrii:i]

ng r

that, to the best of its knowledge and
ccounts, no funds have been received

or entity(ies), including foreign entities
rstanding, whether recorded in writing or

ll, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

neficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
U ltimate Beneficiaries.

procedures that has been considered reasonable and
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has

believe that the representations under iv (a) and (b) above,
material misstatement.

company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, has
used an accounting software, payroll application and employee
reimbursement software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software/application. However, audit trail feature is not enabled at the
database ievel for accounting software to log any direct data changes as
described in Note 35 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of
our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being

nting software, payroll application and

A

* *
6



Place: Mumbai
Date : 11th May, 2024

...6

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is

applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 1 1(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention ls not applicable for the financial
year ended March 31,2024,

For M/s
Charte

Firm's

Dh . Talati: Partner
hip No: F141867

UR Y

ct) IHARTERTD

* *



"Annexure A" to the lndependent Auditors' Report

The Annexure Referred to in paragraph 5A of the Independent Auditor's Repo{ of even date

to the members of Gramos ihemicais lndia Private Limited on the Financial Statements for

the year ended March 31,2024.

1) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

particulars, including

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particul ible

Assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verifi
and Equipment by which Property, Plant and Equipment n a phased

manner over a period of three years. ln accordance this ramme, certain
Property, Plant and Equipment were verified duri and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the of immovable properties

disclosed in the financial statements are e of the company

(d) According to the information and given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment during the year under consideration

(e) According to the info ations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the reco pany, No proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the holding any Benami Property under the Benami
Transactions (P 88 and Rules made there under

its , Plant

2) (a) The ma
intervals
manag
agg
co

in

in
conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable
on the coverage and procedure of such verification by the

eme p riate. As informed to us, discrepancies of 10o/o or more in the
class of lnventory on physical verification of the inventory as

records has not been noticed

to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
ation of the records of the Company, the Company, during any point of time of
, has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,

regate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year under consideration the
Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted

any Loans or advances in the nature of loans, Secured or Unsecured, to Companies,
Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any Other Parties. Therefore, the provisions of

3)

clause 3(iiiXa) to 3(iiiXf) of the Order are not applicable to the
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4) The company has not given loans, made investments, given guarantees and provided
securities covered by provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, clause 3(iv) of the aforesaid Order is not applicable to the Company.

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to
deposits and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of lndia and

be
the
theprovisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the

Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 are not applicable,
and

6) As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not
Central Government under Sub Section (1) of Section 148 of the
of the products or services of the Company.

7) (a) According to information and explanations given
examination of the books of account, and records,
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues ng

the
of any

e basis of our
been generally

s and Service Tax,

(b) According to the info
company examined by
Provident Fund, Empl
customs, duty of
have not been

8) According

les tax, Service Tax, Duty
other statutory dues as

to us, no undisputed amounts
on the last day of the financial year

they become payable.

lanation given to us and the records of the
no Statutory dues of Goods and Service Tax,

urance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
ded tax, cess and other material statutory dues which

of any dispute.

Provident Fund, Employees'State lnsurance, I

of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added SS

applicable with the appropriate authorities

According to the information and
payable in respect of the above
for a period of more than six mo

ation and explanations given to us and the records of the
us, the Company does not have any transactions not recorded in

unt that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961.

rding to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or

th

the
company

ot

e)

borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or any other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

1:;-;r-ii \
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(d) Based upon the audit procedures performed, the information and explanations

bluen to us ariO tne records 6t tne company examined by us, there are no funds raised

by the Company.

(e) Based upon the audit procedures performed, the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the company examined by us, the Company has not
tat<en any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) Based upon the audit procedures performed, the information
given to us and the records of the
raised any loans during the year on
ventures or associate companies.

company examined by us, the
the pledge of securities held in

Based upon the audit procedures performed, the nd explanations

S

not
, joint

10) (a)

12) |

given to us and the records of the company exami by company has not
offer (including debtrraised moneys by way of initial public offer or

instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the
are not applicable to the CompanY.

(b) Based upon the audit procedures
given to us and based on our exami
has not made any preferential a

3(x)(a) of the Order

information and explanations
rds of the company, the company

placement of shares or convertible
e) during the year. Accordingly, the

orp
debentures (fully, partially or
provisions of clause 3(xXb) of applicable to the Company.

u performed and the information and explanations
n ination of the records of the company, no material

mpany has been noticed or reported during the year.

n( 12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and

with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date
of any fraud against the Company by its officers or employees

to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints

11) (a) Based upon the au
given to us and based
fraud by the Com

(b) No report
by the a
Auditors)
of th

(c)

r

company during the year.

opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
pany is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order

are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the

13)

applicable accounting standards

4
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(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an

internal audit system and is also not required to have an internal audit system as per

provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

(b) ln view of the above, the provisions of clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explan tven

to us and based on our examination of the records of the company,
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
directors. Accordingly, the provisions of section 192 ol the Compan are not
applicable to the Company.

16) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the d explanations
given to us and based on our examination of the ny, tn our oplnton,

14)

17)

18)

has
its

the company is not required to be registered under
lndia Act, 1934.

(b) Based upon the audit procedures
given to us and based on our examination
the company has not conducted
activities without a valid Certificate of
as per the Reserve Bank of lndia

(c) Based upon the audit p
given to us and based on
the company is not a
made by the Reserve

(d) Based upon
given to us
does not

n45 the Reserve Bank of

rmation and explanations
reco of the company, in our opinion,

Financial or Housing Finance
(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of lndia

rmed and the information and explanations

on our examination of the records of the company, the Company has
cash losses during the year under consideration nor in the immediately

financial year.

re has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

19) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our

to
ne

of the records of the company, in our opinion,
Company (ClC) as defined in the regulations

ia

ures performed and the information and explanations
our examination of the records of the company, the group

nt Company (ClC).

it procedures performed and the information and explanations given

tr
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attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any a that

get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet d

21) Based on Rule 6 of Companies (Accounts) Rules
Financial Statements are not applicable to the Co
clause 3(xxi) of the order are not applicable to

Place: Mumbai
Date : 11th May, 2024

20) ln our Opinion, the provisions of section 1

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx)
Company.

35 are not appl to e ompany
of the order a le to the

4p s for Consolidated
ingly, the provisions of

For M/s Kastury & Talati
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Reg on No: 104908W

Dhiren P. Talati: Partner
Membership No: F141867

lii.i
t?

fJj CfiAliTffiLD

ACC0Ut{1/r.tJ15
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"Annexure B" to the lndependent Auditors' Report

The Annexure Referred to in paragraph 6B(f) of the lndependent Auditor's Report of even
date to the members of Gramos Chemicals lndia Private Limited on the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31,2024.

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
143 of the Gompanies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of cals

Management's Responsibility for I

The Company's management is
controls based on the inte

implementation
effectively for e
to company's p

lndia Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conj
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that d

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material
controls system over financial reporting and such
reporting were operating etfectively as at March 31,
financial reporting criteria established by the Co
of internal control stated in the Guidance
Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute

audit of

n uate internal financial
controls over financial

n the internal control over
g the essential components

lnternal Financial Controls Over
ntants of lndia.

ial Controls

r establishing and maintaining internal financial
financial reporting criteria established by the

,f

t.;7 cl.!ARTilttD

ACCOUNTANTS

Company considering the ents of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of lnterna o over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accounta (lCAl). These responsibilities include the design,

of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence

afeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparatio ancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

nsibility

Our ibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
fi reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effective

r1t,[,iiall material respects

* Je

ly in
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating etfectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected de n the

theauditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material mi
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and a provide.
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal fina
financial reporting.

system over

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial n

A company's internal financial control over a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the
preparation of financial statements for extern

ancial reporting and the

accepted accounting principles. A company's fi
in accordance with generally
control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that to e maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly the ons and dispositions of the assets

2

of

of the company; (2) provide
necessary to permit preparation
accepted accounting principles,
made only in accordance with
and (3) provide reason
unauthorised acquisition,
material effect on the fi

lnherent

Because
includi of
mt

Place: Mumbai
Date : 11th May, 2024

nce that transactions are recorded as
nts in accordance with generally

and expenditures of the company are being
of management and directors of the company;

n regarding prevention or timely detection of
osition of the company's assets that could have a

nts

I FinancialGontrols over Financial Reporting

limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
collusion or improper management override of controls, material

Dhiren P. Talati: Partner
Membership No: F141867

d

SU

to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are

risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
eq because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

poli procedures may deteriorate.

For M/s Kastury & Talati
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 104908W



Gramos Chemicals lndia Private Limited

CIN: U99999MH1985PTC035486

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

Particulars

ASSETS

l. Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment and lntangible Assets
(i) Property, plant and equipment
(ii) Capital work-in-progress
(iii) Other intangible assets

(b) Other non-current assets

(d) lncome Tax (Net)

Total non-current assets

ll.Current assets

(a) lnventories
(b) Financial Assets

i)Trade receivables

ii)Cash and cash equivalents
iii)Other bank balances

iv)Loans

(c) Current Tax (Net)

(d) Other current assets

Total current assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

l. Equity
(a) Share capital
(b) other equity

Total equity

ll.Non Current liability
(a) Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

Total Non current liabilities

lll,Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Trade payables

Trade payables -MSMED

Trade payables -Others
(b) Other current liabilities

Total cu.rent liabilities

Notes
As At

ttlotl2024
(Rs, ln lakhs)

As At

31,10312023

(Rs, ln lakhs)

5

1,056.33

118.19

0.50

1.51

r49,76

L,326,29

52.34

13.65

7.4r
22.16

477.78

523.35

0.03

3.46

742.72

L,t47,33

43.L2

15.39

32.68

2.50

58.55

28.66

L79.A4

361,75

6

7

8

9

10

LT

12

13

14

15

16

16

L7

t4.28
229.93

339,77

1,665.ffi 1,509.08

33.67

33.67

48.00

915.81

964.81

48.00

918.60

956.60

23.91

23.9L

76.00

54.59

3s0.01

37.86

s18.55

2L7.00

1.84

398.6s

s0.08

667.57

Total Equity and Llabilities

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Notesreferredtoaboveformanintegral partoftheBalanceSheetandshouldbe readin
coniunction therewith

1,666.06 1,509,08

1

1 -36

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gramos Chemicals lndia Private LimitedAs per our report of even date attached

For M/s Kastury & Talati
Accountants

Dhiren P. Talati

Partner

Memberchip No. F/41867

Place: Mumbal

Date : 11th May 2024
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Sameer V, Shah

Director

Din :00105721

Place: Navi Mumbai

Date : llth May 2024

Rashmi s. Gavli

Director

Din :08001649

Place: Navi Mumbai

Date : 11th May 2024
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Gramos Chemicals lndia Private limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Particularc

I Revenue From Operations
ll Other lncome
lll Total Revenue (l+ll)

lV Expenses :

a) Cost of Materials Consumed

b) Changes in lnventories of Finished goods. Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

c) Employee Benefits Expense

d) Finance Costs

e) Depreciation and Amortisation expense

f) Other Expenses

Total Expenses

V Profit before Exceptional items and Tax

Vl Exceptional ltems

Vll Profit before Tax

Vlll Tax Expense

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Short/(Excess) provision of lncome Tax of earlier years (net)
Total Tax Expense

lX ProfitfortheYear

X Other Comprehensive lncome
1 i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

ii) lncome Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

2 i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

ii) lncome Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other Comprehensive lncome (1+2)

Total Comprehensive lncome (lX+X)

Xl Earning Per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 100 each

Basic (in Rs.)

Diluted (in Rs.)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet and should be read in
coniunction therewith

Notes

1 -35

r,170.97

L4.64

1,185.51

580.24

(1.03)

55.91

2,71

113.91

410.4t

7,167.63

26.46

1,L94.09

587.96

(2.43],

108.30

r.47

42.25

352.28

202t2024
(Rs. ln lakhs)

2022-202t
(Rs. ln lakhs)

18

19

20

2I

22

23

2

24

L,L72.L5

lt.47

4.98

9.76

1,189.84

4.25

4,25

0.73

L0.44
(0.s9)

Ll.47

L4.74 10.57

(1.271 (6.32)

(0.s3) 0.71

(0.se) o.7t

(1.801 (s.5rl
26

(2.6s)

(2.6s)

(13.16)

(13.16)

1

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gramos Chemicals lndia Private LlmitedAs per our report of even date attached

For M/s Kastury & Talati
Accountants

Dhiren P. Talatl

Partner

Membership No.Fl41867
Place: Mumbai
Date : l1th May 2024
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Sameer v. Shah

Director

Din | 00105721

Place : Navi Mumbai

Date: l.lth MaV2024

Rashmi S, Gavli

Dlrector

Din:08d)1649
Place : Navi Mumbai

Date : l1th May 2024
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Particulars 91,.03.2024 31.03.2023

113.91 42.25

2.7t r..08

9.s9

tL6.62

L3.46

43.33

4.27

(9.s9

13.74

(e.21)

7.47

( 136.80)

(2.27],

139.05

It.4t

130.08

(0.02)

38.01

L4L.49

2.36

37.99

5.7r

143.85 43.70

287 77], (s41.241

5.24

432.33

o87.771 (103.67)

(2.71],

141.00

76.00
(1.08)

138.29 74.92

A

B

c

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Employee ESOP compensation
Finance Cost

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment

Operating Profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for :

Trade and Other Receivables

lnventories
Trade and Other Payables

Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities
Payment to acquire Property, plant & equipment's
Proceeds from Sale of Property, plant & equipment's
Purchase of lnvestment
Sale of lnvestment
Dividend lncome

Net Cash used in lnvesting Activities (B)

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings
ESOP Shares Allotted
Share Premium on ESOP Shares Allotted
Dividend paid

Tax on dividend paid
Borrowings
Finance Cost

Net (Decrease)/lncrease in Cash & Cash Activities (A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances as on Opening

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances as on Closing

Less

Dividend Received

Net Cash from Operating Activities (A)

Cash Flow from Financing Activates

Net Cash from Financing Activities (C)

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation
Net Gain on lnvestments

Cash generated from operations
lncome taxes paid (Net of Refund)

(s.62)

35.18

29.56

14.93

20.25

3s.18

Gramos Chemicals lndia Private limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2024

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s Kastury & Talati

Accountants

ln

For and on behalf ofthe Board of Dlrectors of
Gramos Chemlcals lndla Prlvate Llmited

Sameer V. Shah

Dlrector

Dln : 00105721

Place: Navl Mumbal

Date | llth May 2024

{.\)4-- qJ
Dhlren P. Talatl

Partner

Membershlp No. F/41867

Place : Mumbal

Date : l1th May 2024
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Rashml S. Gavli

Dlrectol

Din:08001649

Place : Navi Mumbal

Date : llth May 2024,r; CiiAliIf;lliit)
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No. ol Shares Amounl

Balance as at 3lst March 2023

Changes in equity share capitat

Balance as at 3l March 2024

48,000

48.000

48.00

48.00

Gramos Chemicals lndia Private Llmited

Statement of Changes in EquiW for the year ended 3lst March, 2024

March 2021

Othcr March 2024

0ther for lh. rnded 3lst March 2023

As per our report of even dat€ attached

For M/s Kastury & Talati

Accountants

Ohiren P. Talati

Parlner
MembeFhlp No, F/41867

Place : Mumbal
Date : llth May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Dlredors of
Gramos Chemlcals lndla Prlvate Llmited

Rs, in lakhs

-{'1h--
Sameer V. Shah

Dlrectot

Dln | 00105721

Place I Mumbal

Rashml S. Gavll
Dlrector

Dln | 08001649
Place: Mumbal

No. ol Share. Amounl

Batance as at 3lst March 2022

Changes in equity share capital

Balance as at 3l March 2023

48,000

48.000

48.00

48.00

Rciarue3 and Ssrplus Statcmant ol olhgr comprehonglva lncoma

Parllculars General R.saryo
S.curllle3
pr.mlum esrnlngs/Proflt &

Retalned Rameasuromgnts ol the
ncl deflned benellt Tolal olh.r rquily

Balance as at 3 lst March 2023 219.76 668-85 918.60

fotal Comprehensive
Profit for the year 11.271 (1 27\
0ther comprehensive income for the year (0.s3) 40.531

lncome Tax of Earlier Years

lransactions with owners of the company

nterlm Dividend on EquiW Shares

nterim Dividend Distribution Tax

)lvidend on Eouiw Shares

Dividend 0istribution Tax
tremium on aliotment of shares by way of right issue

fransferred f rom Relained Earninqs

Balance as at 31st March2024 249.75 667.06 916.8't

Parllculars General Roserye
Socurltlog
promlum earnlng3/Profll &

Retalned
nal deflned boneflt Total othar equiiy

Balance as at 31st March 2022 249.76 674.47 92t.21

Total Comprehensive

Profit for the year (5.32) 16 32t
0ther compreh€nsive income for the vear o.7r o.71
lncome Tax of Eartier Years

Transactions with owners of the company

lnterim Dividend on Equitv Shares

lnterim Dividend Distribution Tax

Divldend on Eouitv shares

Dividend Distribution Tax of earlier year

fransferred to General Reserye
fransferred frgm Retained Earninqs

Balance as at 31st March 2023 249.75 668.86 918.60
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Date | llth May 2024 Date : l1th May 2024



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31-,2024

COMPANY INFORMATION:

Gramos Chemicals lndia Private Limited (the 'Company') is a Private Limited company domiciled and
incorporated in lndia under the lndian Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is
located at EL-71,Chembond Centre,MlDC,Mahape, Navi Mumbai-400 710

Gramos Chemicals lndia Private Limited (the Company) is a private limited Company domiciled in lndia and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in manufacturing of
chemically treated Tak-Rag/ Dust-free Cloth.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in Compliance with lndian Accounting Standards ('lnd
AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (tndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016
and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial
statements except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.2 Functional and presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in lNR, which is the company's functional currency and is rounded off
to the nearest lakhs except otherwise indicated.

1.3 Current / Non-Current Classification:

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

i. the asset/liability is expected to be realised/ settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

ii.

iii

iv

the asset is intended for sale or consumption;

the asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

the asset/liability is e_xpected to be realised/ settled within twelve mo
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the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date;

VI in the case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current

For the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has

ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months and other criteria set out in the Schedule lll to
the Companies Act, 2013. This is based on the nature of product/services and the time taken between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents.

1.4 Use of Estimates

The preparation of Financial Statements is in conformity with lnd AS and requires the Management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent liabilities on the date of Financial Statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses

during the period. Accounting estimates can change from period to period. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of the changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are
made, and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

1.5 Summary of significant accounting policies:

a) Propefi, Plant and Equipment

Measurement at recognition :

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at
cost An item of Property, plant and equipment (PPE) that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following intial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at
its cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses if any.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment
separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and
equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining item.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), duties, freight and other directly attributable
costs related to the acquisition or construction of the respective assets. Profit or Loss on disposal of tangible
assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent Measurement:

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate sed when replaced. All other repa nd maintenance are

and duri
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Capital work in proeress

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress

Depreciation and Amortization :

Depreciation on PPE* (other than free hold and lease hold land) has been provided on Written Down Value
basis at the rates prescribed in Schedule ll of the Companies Act, 20L3,
Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is amortized over the primary period of lease.

Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the
Derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the item is derecognised.

bl Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are inclusive of Goods and Service Tax (GST) and net of returns, trade discount or rebates and
applicable taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government and which are levied on such sales.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, and it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company.

i. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards
of ownership to the buyer as per terms of Contract.

ii. Revenue from seryices is recognised pro-rata as and when services are rendered.
iii. lnterest income is recognised using effective interest method on time proportion basis

taking in to account the amount outstanding.
iv. Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive is established by the

reporting date, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

c) Lease Accounting
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals on
assets and premises taken on operating lease are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss

on an accrual basis over the lease term.

d) lnventory
lnventories are valued at lower of the cost determined on weighted average basis or net realisable value.
The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. Damaged, unserviceable
and inert stocks are valued at net realizable value.

Cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable
from tax
condition

authorities) and all other costs incurred in bri
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Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of direct materials, direct labour, an
appropriate allocation of production overheads, and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

The company considers factors like estimated shelf life, product discontinuances and ageing of inventory in
determining the provision for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable inventory and adjusts the
inventory provisions to reflect the recoverable value of inventory.

e) lmpairment of Assets

i) lmpairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured based on lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, ECLs are measured at
an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs (or Reversal) that is
required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

ii) lmpairment of non-financial assets

At Balance Sheet date, an assessment is done to determine whether there is any indication of impairment in
the carrying amount of the Company's fixed assets. lf any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

An assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. lf any
such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The carrying amount of the fixed asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year

After recognition of impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation charge
for the asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount on Written Down
Value basis.

f) Financiallnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as
foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, futures and currency options.



i) Financial Assets

lnitial recoenition and measurement:

Classification

The Company shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) on the basis

of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

lnitial recognition and measurement

Allfinancial assets are recognised initially at fairvalue plus, in the case of financialassets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established

by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date,

i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Where the fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the
difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement
of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an

active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data

from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input).

ln case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference
between the fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and recognised as a gain or loss in

the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor
that market participants take into account when pricing the financial asset.

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at
transaction price.

Subseq uent measurement

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below
criteria

The Company's business model for managing the financial asset and

ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
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ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FWOCI)

iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

i. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The Company's business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in

order to collect contractual cash flows, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of the
Company. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

ii. Financial assets measured at FVTOCI:

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The Company's business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to certain investments in debt instruments. Such financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognised in the Other
Comprehensive lncome (OCl). However, the Company recognises interest income and impairment losses

and its reversals in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified

from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Further, the Company, through an irrevocable election at initial recognition, has measured certain
investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI. The Company has made such election on an instrument by

instrument basis. These equity instruments are neither held for trading nor are contingent consideration
recognised under a business combination. Pursuant to such irrevocable election, subsequent changes in

the fair value of such equity instruments are recognised in OCl. However, the Company recognises dividend
income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive payment is

established, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount can be

measured reliably.

On Derecognition of suc cumulative gain or loss previously
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Further, the Company, through an irrevocable election at initial recognition, has measured certain

investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI. The Company has made such election on an instrument by

instrument basis. These equity instruments are neither held for trading nor are contingent consideration

recognised under a business combination. Pursuant to such irrevocable election, subsequent changes in

the fair value of such equity instruments are recognised in OCl. However, the Company recognises dividend
income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive payment is

established, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount can be

measured reliably.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is not
reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer such

cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings within equity.

iii. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

A financial asset is measured at FWPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as explained

above. This is a residual category applied to all other investments of the Company excluding investments in

subsidiary and associate companies. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each

reporting date. Fair value changes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs:
i. The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

ii. The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has

substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

iii. The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows without material delay to one or more recipients under a 'pass-through' arrangement
(thereby substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset);

iv. The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards-of ownership and does not
retain control over the financial asset.

ln cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the financial asset, but retains control of the financial asset, the Company continues to recognise such

financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset. ln that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The financial asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in (ii) above for financial assets

measured at FVTOCI),

recognised in the State

the carrying amount and the consideration received is



lmpairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss

allowance on the following:

Trade receivables

Financial assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade receivables)
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

ln case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to
lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance. ln case of other assets (listed as (ii) and (iii)
above), the Company determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset
since initial recognition. lf the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equalto
12-month ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.

However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss

allowance based on 12-month ECL

Financial liabilities

lnitial recognition and measurement

The Company recognises a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case

of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are

attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability.
Where the fair value of a financial liability at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the
difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement
of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an
active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data
from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input).

ln case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference
between the fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and recognised as a gain or loss in

the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor
that market participants take into account when pricing the financial liability.
Subsequent measurement:

Allfinancial liabilities of the Company are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial liability over the
relevant period of the financial liability to arrive at the amortised cost at each reporting date. The
corresponding effect of the amortisation under effective interest method is recognised as interest
expense over the relevant period of the financial liability. The same is included under finance cost in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification istreated asthe derecognition of the originalliabilityand the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

g) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities forgoods and services provided to the Company priorto the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are usually unsecured. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months after the reporting period.
They are recognised initially at their fair value.

h) Provisions:

The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a
result of a past event that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an out flow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. lf the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

i) ContingentLiability:

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,
no provision or disclosure is made.



j) Fair Value Measurement

The Company's measures Financial lnstruments at fair value at each Balance sheet date

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ln the absence of a principal market, ln the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fairvalue of an asset ora liability is measured using the assumptionsthat market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: Level L - Quoted (unadjusted)
market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the levelof the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

k) Foreign Currency Translation:

lnitial recognition
Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted in the functional
currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising
on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

Measurement of foreien currencv items at the Bala nce Sheet date:
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are restated at the
year-end closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date of the transactio4. Excha

the statement of profit and'loss"." '
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nge differences arising out of these ons are cha rged to



l) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses.

m) Income Taxes

lncome tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax expense and is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in OCt.

a. Current tax:
Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or recoverable in respect of previous years. lt is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

b. Deferred tax:
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit under lncome Tax Act, l-961.However, in case of temporary differences that arise from
initial recognition of asset or liability in a transaction (other than in a business combination) that affect
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. Also,
for temporary differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences (if any) to the
extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of part
or all of such deferred tax assets to be utilized. Such reductions are reversed when the probability of
the future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive lncome, in which case,
the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognised in Other Comprehensive lncome. The
Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the deferred tax lia bilities,
the same are offset rresponding current tax
assets against curre
income taxes levied

rela te to



n) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand,
bank balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less and other
short term highly liquid investments net of bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand as these form
an integral part of the Company's cash management.

o) Employee Benefits:

Shor.t..Term Emplovee Benefits :

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as

short term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders
the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after
deducting any amount already paid. The Company does not allow any accumulation of leave balance
or encashment thereof.

Post-Emplovment Benefits:

L Defined Contribution plans:

Defined contribution plans are Employee's Provident Fund scheme, Employee state insurance
scheme for all applicable employees and superannuation scheme for eligible employees. The

Company contribution for the year paid / payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in

the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ll. DefinedBenefit-.plans:

Provident Fund scheme

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund scheme in

accordance with the statutory provisions.

Gratuity

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for employees. The Company contributes to
a separate entity (a fund) towards meeting the Gratuity obligation.

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations
recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as

reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined
benefit obligations resulting from this calculation) is recognized representing the present value of
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost, if any, and net interest on the
defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) comprising gains and losses

amounts included in net

,; Clli:lti'::iiiD
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benefit liability/asset), are recognized in Other Comprehensive lncome. Such remeasurements are
not reclassified to the statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods.

The Company presents the above liability/(asset) as current and non-current in the Balance Sheet
as per actuarial valuation by the independent actuary.

p) Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized,
if any. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

q) Segment Reporting:

The Company has determined that it operates in a single business segment, namely "Manufacturing of
chemically specialize in liquid plastic products based on PVC such as PVC Plastisols, PVC Sealants, pVC

Underbody Coatings, PVC Organisols and PVC Protective Coatings." As per IND AS-108 'Operating
Segments', if a financial report contains both the consolidated financial statements of a parent that is

within the scope of lnd AS-108 as well as the parent's separate financial statements, segment information
is required only in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, information required to be
presented under lnd AS-108 Operating Segments has been given in the consolidated financial statements.

r) Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the
phrend of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the Financial Statements.
Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

s) Non-current Assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use of the assets and actions required to
complete such sale indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan to sell will be made
or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Also, such assets are classified as held for sale only if the
management expects to complete the sale within one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
the fair value less cost to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised.

t) Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company with the weighted average number ity shares outstandin g during the financial year,
adjusted for treasury shares. Diluted Earnings ated by dividing net profit attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company number of shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for the effects ntial equity shares.





Gramos Chemlcals lndla Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2024

Note 3: Other non-current assets

Particularc

Security Deposits

Other Deposits

Gratuity

Note 4: lncome tax assets (net)

Particulars

Tax Paid in advance (Net of Provision)

Note 5 : lnventories

ParticulaB

Raw Materials

Packing Materials

Finished Goods

Trading Goods

Note 5: Trade Receivables

Particulars

(l) Trade receivables

a) Considered good - Secured

b) Considered good -Unsecured

c) Trade receivables -Significant risk

d) Trade receivables -credit impaired

Less: Trade receivables -Significant risk

Note 7: cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks :

ln current accounts

Cash on hand

Note 8: Other bank balances

Partlculars

Bank balance other than above
Deposit held as Margin Money against Bank Guarantee

Note 9: Loans

Particulars

Other Loans & Advances

Note 10: Current tax assets (Net)

Particula6

As at March
gt,2024

As at March

31,2029

1.51 2.73

0.73
Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

36.45

4.83

11.05

30.09

3.11

9.90

0.02

1.51 3.46

As at March

tt,2o?r'.
(Rs. in lakhsl

As at March

3L,2O2t
(Rs, in lakhs)

L49.76 742.72

t49.76 L42.72

As at March
3t,2024

As at March
tL,2023

52.34 4?,12

As at March

3L,2024
As at March

91,2023

13.55

0.t4

73.79

(0.14)

15.39

0.39

16.78
(0.39)

13.55 15,39

As at March

31,2024
As at March

?t,2021

7.4L 32.6t
0.07

7,4L 32.6A

As at March

3t,zO?4
(Rs. in lakhs)

As at March

3L,2023

{Rs. in lakhsl

22.16 2.50

22.t6 2.50

As at March As at March
3L,2024 ?t,202t

(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. ln lakhs)

58.s5

s8.55

As at March
3L,2024

As at March

3L,2023

14.28 28.66

t' i; l'
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Tax Paid in advance (Net of

*

Total t4-r8 28.66



Note 11: Other Current Assets

Particulars

GST Receivable (Net)

Prepaid Expenses

Accrued lnterest on Bank Deposit

Gratuity
Capital Advance

Note 12: Share capital

Particulars

Authorised share capital
1,00,000, (Previous years: 1,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each

lssued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
48,000 (Previous years: 48,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100 each

Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at 31st March,2024

Equity shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the year

Add: lssued during the year for cash

Less : Bought Back during the year

outstanding at the end of the year

d. Details of shareholding of Promoters

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31st March, 2024 is as follows:

Shares held by promoters at the end of the period

S.No Promoter Name

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 3lst March,2023 is as follows:

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

S,No Promoter Name

1 Phiroze Sethna Private Limited

As at March As at March

3\2024 3\2023

218.83

2.28

0,05

0,36

8.40

176.95

2,L6

0.25

0.48

Total 229,93 L79,U

As at March As at March

3t,2024 3L,2023

100.00 100.00

48,00

48.00

48.00

48.00

b. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par Value of Rs.10/-per share. Each Share holder of Equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share

ln the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders.

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares capital ln aggregate in the Company

Name of Shareholders
% of Holding As at March As at March

3L,2024 (Rs 31,2023(Rs.tn
ln Lakhs) lakhs)

Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 100.00 4&000 48,000

No. of shares As at March As at March
3L,2024 (Rs 31,2023 (Rs.ln

ln Lakhs) lakhs)
48,000 48.00 48,00

4&000 48.00 48.00

No of shares

1 Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 47ggg
2 Sameer V. Shah Jtly Shilpa S. Shah* L

Shareholding of Phiroze Sethna Private Limited includes 1 shares held by individuals as nominees ofthe Company.

% of Total
Yo change

during the

Yeari * *

No change

% change

during the
year***

No change

99.99

0.002

No of shares**

47999

% of Total **

99.99

0.0022 Sameer V. Shah Jtly Shilpa S. Shah* 1

Shareholding of Phiroze Sethna Private Limited includes 1 shares held by individuals as nominees of the Company.



Note 13: Other Equity

Particulars

General Reserve

Opening Balance

Add : amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit and loss

Add / (Less) : Adjustment of Mutual Fund fair Value

Closing balance

Retained earnings: Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Opening Balance

Less: Profit / (Loss) for the period

Net surplus / (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Less: Appropriation

Other Comprehensive lncome
Tax on OCI

Dividend on equity shares for the year
Dividend distribution tax on dividend
Balance at the end of the year

Note 14 i Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars

Mat Credit

Fixed Assets

Gratuity

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Note 15: Borrowings

Particulars

Unsecured

Loan Received From Phiroze Sethna Pvt Ltd

Note 16: Trade Payables

Particulars

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2O0O

lnterest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 on the above amount

As at March

31,2024
(Rs. in lakhs)

As at March

3L,2021
(Rs. in lakhs)

249.75 249.75

249.75 249.75

668.86

(t.27l.
674.47

(6.32)

668.15667.59

(0.s3) 0.7r

667.06 668.86

Total

Total

Total

915.81 918.50

As at March

3t,2024
(Rs. in lakhs)

As at March

3t,2023
(Rs, in lakhs)

(2.88)

36.55

(8.ss)

32.63

(0.20)

0,03

33,67 23.9L

As at March

3L,2024
(Rs, in lakhs)

As at March

3L,2023
(Rs. in lakhs)

2L7.00 76.00

2L7.OO 76.00

As at March

3L,2024
(Rs. in lakhs)

As at March

3L,2023
(Rs. in lakhs)

Others

Total 400.s0 404.70

a) For Related party transaction Refer Note No.31
The Company has amounts due to suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) as at the year end. The

b) disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under:.

As at March As at March
3L,2024 3L,2O23

(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

1.84

398.65

54.69

350.01

r.84

1.63

54.69

0.s9

0.59

lnterest paid/adjusted to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 (Section 16)

lnterest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 for payments already made

lnterest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act,
2005 1.63
The information regarding Micro, Small and Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

o; CllAltTi:i:i:t)
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information available with the Com upon by the Auditors.



Note 17 : Other Current liability

Particulars

Statutory Dues :

TDS

Profession tax

Accrued Expenses

Payable to Employees

Note 18 : Revenue from operations

Partlculars

Sale of Products : Manufactured Goods

Other Operating revenue
Miscellaneous lncome

Note 19: Other lncome

Particulars

Rent Received Tds Rs.1.44 (Tds Rs,1.44)

lnterest Received on Bank Deposit
lnterest Received Other
Net gain on Sale/fair valuation of investments through profit & loss
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed assets

For Related party transaction Refer Note N0.31

Note 20 : Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars

Raw Materials Consumed

Packing Material

Note 21 : Changes in lnventories of tinlshed goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

Partlculars

(a) Flnished products/ Stock in Trade (At Ctose)
Finished products

Semifinished products

Trading goods

(b) Finished products/ Stock in Trade (At commencement)
Finished products

Semifinished products

Trading goods

(lncrease) / Decrease in stocks

Note 22 : Employee benefits expense

Particulars

Salaries, lncentives and Bonus

contribution to provident and other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

For Related party transaction Refer Note No.31
The Company's obligation towards the Gratuity Fund is a Oefined Benefit plan.

Details of actuarial Valuation are as follows:

As at March As at March

It,2024 31,2023
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

L.72

0.49

32.97

14.90

2.50

0.49

13.95

20.92
Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

t4.40
0.13

0.0s

0.06

L4.40

0.11

2,35

9.59

0.00

50.08 37,86

202?-2024 2022-202?
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)

1,t67.44

3.s3

L,I67,59

0.04

t,L70.97 t,L67,63

2023-2024
(Rs in lakhsl

2022-2023
(Rs in lakhs)

L4,64 26.46

2023-2024
(Rs in lakhs)

2022-2023
(Rs in lakhs)

543.98

36.26

654.55

33.40

sao.24 687.96

2023-2024 2022-202t
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)

4.58

6.39

LO.97

9.73

0.18

0.03

9.94

9.73

0.18

0.03

9.93

6.50

1.00

7.so
(1.031 12.4Sl

202t-2024
(Rs In lakhs)

2022-2029
(Rs in lakhsl

47.85

3.35

L4.69

91.03

5.28

t2.00
65.91 108,30



Particulars

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

lnterest on defined benefit obligation
(Benefits paid)

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes

Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in the fair value of assets in case of Gratuity representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances
thereof:
Opening fair value of plan assets

Employer Contributions
Amount not recognised due to Asset limit (P,Y)

Equitable Fund transfer in

lnterest on plan assets

Expected return on plan assets not included in the interest income
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets

Benefit paid

Closing fair value of plan assets

Actuarial assumption:
Discount rate

Salary escalation

Profit & loss Account Expense

Current service cost

lnterest on net defined benefit liability / (assets)

(Gains) / losses on settlement
Closing fair value of plan assets

Reconciliation of Net liability / Asset

Opening net defined benefit liability / (asset)

Expense charged to profit & loss account
Amount recognized outside profit & loss account
Employer contributions

Closing fair value of plan assets

Movement in Benefit Obligations
Opening net defined benefit obligation
Current Service Cost

lnterest on defined benefit obligation
Remeasurements due to :

Actuarial loss/ (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes
Benefit paid

Closing fair value of plan assets

2023-2024
(Rs in lakhsl

2022-2023
(Rs in lakhs)

4.86

0.45

0,37

(0.s2)

4.79

0.54

0.34

0,L2

0.30

5,57

6.O7

0.03

0.46

(0.11)

(0.s2)

5.93

(0.82)

4.85

5.73

0,04

7.3%

5%

o.4L

(0.11)

6.O7

7.5%

0.54

(0.07)

0.48

0.45

(o.oe)

0.35

(1.21)

0.35

0.s3

(0.03)

(0,36)

4.85

0.45

o.37

0.t2

0.30

(0.s2)

5.57

5%

(0.s4)

0,48

(0.71)

(0,04)

(1.211

4.79

0.54

0.34

(0.82)

4.86

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected
the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

As at 31st March.2024 As at 31st March,2023
lncrease Decrease lncrease

Discount rate (1% movement) - Gratuity (10.00) 11.6
Future salary growth (1% movement) - Gratuity 11.8 (10.30) 13.30

Decrease

13.10

The above sensitivity analyses have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other
changes in market conditions at the reporting date, ln practice, generally it does not occur. When we change one variable, it affects to others. ln
calculating the sensitivity, project unit credit method at the end of the reporting period has been applied.

future cash flows

The Management has relied on the overall by the actuary. However experience adjustments on plan liabilities

*, Clir:iii:;1iIi)
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Ihe expected maturity analysis is as follows For year

ended
For year

ended
Expected benefits for year 1 0.10 0.09
Expected benefits for year 2 0.10 0.10
Expected benefits for year 3 0.11 0.10
Expected benefits for year 4 0,L2 0.10
Expected benefits for year 5 o.t2 o.11
Expected benefits for year 6 and above 4,7L 4.r0

are not readily available and hence not
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on plan assets is as furnished by the Actuary appointed by the Com



Note 23 : Finance Cost

Particulars

lnterest Expense

Bank lnterest

Related party lnterest

MSME lnterest

Note 24 : Other expenses

Particulars

Electricity Charges

Power & Fuel Manufacturing
Labour charges for Manufacturing
Repairs :

(i) To Machinery
(ii) To Building
(iiilTo Others
Printing and Stationery
Rates and taxes

lnsurance

Travelling Expenses

Conveyance

Telephone Expenses

Carriage and Freight
Management Consultancy Fees

Legal and Professional Fees

Auditors Remuneration

Discount Allowed (Exp)

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

Water Charges

Vehicle Expenses

Sales Tax Expenses

Security Charges

Filing Fees

lnspection Charges

Miscellaneous Expenses

lnput GST Disallowed
Bad Debts

Reimbursement Expenses

For Related party transaction Refer Note No,31

Auditor's Remuneration consists of :

Particulars

Statutory Audit Fees

Taxation and Other Matters
Tax Audit

Note 25 :Value Of Exports Calculated On FOB Value

Particulars

F.O.B.Value of Exports

Note 26 : Earnings Per Share

Particulars

Net Profit available to Equity Shareholders (Rs. ln Lakhs)

Total number of Equity Shares (Face value of Rs. 100/- each fully paid up)
Weighted No. of Equity Shares
Basic Earnings per Share (in Rupees)

Diluted No. of Equity Shares

Diluted Earnings per Share (in Rupees)

202!-2024

(Rs in lakhs)

2022-202t

(Rs in lakhs)

1.08 0.49

0.39

0.59

0.00

Total

Total

Total

51.14

L.L7

784.73

35.22

4.7r
19.20

3.09

5.01

3,37

3.81

0.56

1.19

L2.47

30.00

19.58

4.66

0.41

0.16

1.36

2.40

0.01

18.89

0.03

1.48

5,62

23.7L

0.24

140.60

1.63

2.71 L.47

2023-2024 2022-2023
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)

18.38

1.16

11.91

2.36

6.L2

3.09

6.72

0.51

1.55

12.67

57.24

26.97

3.78

L.20

0.24

1.13

2.40

L.82

L6.92

0.03

0,66

4.35

5.85

0.45

0.04

410.41 352.28

a

2023-2024
(Rs in lakhs)

202?-2023
(Rs in lakhs)

3.34

0.15

0.54

2.L9

0.32

L.28

4.L4 ?.78

202?-2024
(Rs in lakhs)

2022-2023
(Rs in lakhs)

110.45 224.39
110.45 224.39

202t-2024
(Rs in lakhs)

2022-2023
(Rs in lakhs)

(t,27]'

48000

48000

(2.6s)

48000

(2.6s)

(6.32)

48000

48000

(13.16)

48000

(13.16)

Total
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27 Agelng Schedule for Trade Payables

Aseinq for trade Pavables outstandins as on 3lst March 24 ls as follows :

Partlculars dat€
Not Due Less than 1 vr 1-2 Yrs 2-3 Yrs Mote than 3 Yrs Total

I) MSME 7.84 1.84
ll) Others 79.00 326.75 10.151 l7 801 0.86 398.66
ilt dues - MSME

lV) Disputed dues - Others

Accrued

Net Davables 400.49

Apelns for trade Pavables outstandlns as on 3tst March 23 ls as follows :

Accrued exoenses

Partlculars ollowlng perlods from due date of payments

Not Due Less than 1 yr 1-2 Yrs 2-3 Yrs More than 3 Yrs fotal

r)MsME 31.30 54.59
l) others !40.47 66.89 l0.o9l o.66 348.81

dues - MSME

V) Disputed dues - others

Net trade payables 403.50

28 Ageing Schedule for Trad€ receivables

Aqeins for trade recelvables outstandlnq as on 3lst March 24 is as follows :

Less: Allowance doubtful trade receivables

Particulars from

Not Due

less than 6

months

5 months-
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears

More than
3 vears Total

l) Undisputed trade receivables -
consldered soods 13.80 0.37 0.00 (0.00) 10.01) lo.37l 73.79
ll) Undisputed trade receivables -
which have significant increase in credit
rirk
lii) undisputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

iv) Disputed trade receivables -

considered sood

v) Disputed trade receivables - which

have significant increase in credit risk

vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

0.14
Trade rec€lvables 13.6q

Agelnt Schedule for Trade recelvables
Aseinq for trade receivables outstandlns as on 3lst March 23 ls as follows :

Particulars Outstandlns for followlns oerlods from due date of oavments#

Not Due
L€ss than 6

months
6 months-
I vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears

More than
I vears Total

l) Undisputed trade receivables -
considered goods L7.47 0.41 (0.301 o.27 10.76) l0.2sl 16.78
ll) Undisputed trade receivables -
which have significant increase in credit
risk 0.00
iii) undisputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

iv) Disputed trade receivables

considered rood

v) Disputed trade receivables - which

have slsnlflcant increase in credlt rlsk

vil Disputed trade receivables - credit

impaired

Trade 16.39

Less : Allowance for doubtful trade receiva

i)

!"



29 ADDIT|ONAt REGUT ATORY TNFORMATTON REQUTRED By SCHEDUT E ilt TO Tt{E COMpANtES ACI, 2013

I The company does nothae any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been inititated on or are pending against the Company

for holding benami propertyunder the Benami Transactions(Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

ll The Company do not have any transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of Companles Act, 2013 or section 550 of
Companies Act, 1956

lll The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or fina ncial institution or other lender or government or any government authority.

lv The CompanY has complied wlth the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under Sectlon 2(87) of the Companles Act, 2013

read with the Companies (Restrictlon on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

v Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premlum

I The Company has not advanced or loaned or lnvested funds to any other person(s) or entlty(les), lncluding foreign €ntlties (lntermediaries)

with the understandlng that the lntermediary shall :

(a) Directly or lndlrectly lend or invest in other persons or entlties identifled In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

ll The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), lncluding foreign entitles (Funding party) wlth the understandlng

(whether recorded ln writing or otheruise) that the Company shall :

(a) directly or lndirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Fundlng party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ulflmate beneficiaries

vl There is no income surrendered or disclosed as lncome during the year in tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or suruey),

that has not been recorded in the books of account.

vll The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or vlrtual cu rrency d urlng the year.

ulll 
Th" coap"ny does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Reglstrar of companles beyond the statutory period.

UR

*
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30 Disclosure of Ratios:
Ratios As at March

3L10312024

As at March

3t10312023

a Current Ratio

= Current Assets/Current Liabilities 0.51 0.70

b Debt Equity Ratio

= (Short Term Debt+Long Term Debt+Other Fixed Payments)/
Shareholder's Equity

0.00 0.00

c Debt Service Coverage Ratio

= Net Operating lncome/ Debt Service 0.00 0.00

d Return on Equity Ratio

= Net lncome/ Shareholders Equity 0.01 0.00

e lnventory Turnover Ratio

= Cost of Goods Sold/ Average lnventory 72.74 16.33

f Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio

= Net Credit sales/ Average Accounts Receivable 6.80 29.59

c Trade Payable Turnover Ratio

= Credit Purchases/ Average Accounts Payable 1.46 2.07

h Net Capital Turnover Ratio

= Net Sales/ Working Capital (3.s7) (7.4s)

Net Profit Ratio

= Net Profit/ Net Sales (0.00) (0.01)

Return on Capital Employed

= Earnings Before lnterest and Tax/ Capital Employed 0.34 0.11

crJ

f)t\Lr vql
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Noter31. Related Party Dlsclosutes, as requl,ed by lnd AS 24, "Relates Party Dlsclosutes", are Biven below I

a) Relatlonrhlp:
l. Ultlmate HoldlnS Company:

Chembond Chemicals Limited

ll. Holdin8 Company :

Phiroze Sethna Private limited

lll. Fellow Assoclate and Fellow Subsldiary Companles :

Chembond Material Technologies Private Limited
Chembond Biosciences Limited
Chembond Water Technologies Limlted
Chembond Calvatls lndustrial Hvglene Systems Limited
Chembond Distributlon Llmited

lv, (ey Management Personnel and thelr relatlves (KMp)
Key Management Personnel :
Mr.Sameer V Shah

Mr,Nirmal V Shah

Mrs.RashmlGavli

Mr.Sharad Wagle
Mr.Aspi Godrej

Relatlves :

Padma V shah, Dr.shilpa s. shah,Raunaq shah,Amrita s shah,shashank (Amrita Husband), Malika s shah, Mamta N. shah, Alpana s. shah,.,yoti Mehta,Rahil
Shah,Kshitija Shah,Sameer L. Gavli,Sunita L. Gavli,Ratl M. Tipnis,Nupur s. Gavli, Tushar M. Tipnis,Yogita Tushar Tipnis,prashaht L. Gavli,pallavi S. Wakaskar,Mina
Ghelani,Kalyanii Ghelanl,Kanta Ghelanl,Jayant / Madhu5udan,Rekha / Sudha,

Entltles over whlch Key Mangement personnel are able to exerclse lnfluence i
Balu lnvestment Seruices Pvt Ltd

Bullows lndi. Private Limited
CCt Opto Electronics Private Limited
Finor Plplaj Chemicals Llmited
S and N Venturs Pvt Ltd
GTK lntermediates Private Limlted
Visan Holdings and Financlal Seryices Prtvate Limited
Chembond Clean Water Technologles Ltd

CCL Product LLC

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business i

For year ended as on

of the natuae of transadlons Ultlmate
Holdlng KMP

Ultlmate
Holdlng

Fellow
KMP

Chembond

Materlal Technolo8ies Pvt Ltd

Clean Water Technologies Ltd

Chembond Material Technologles Pyt Ltd

Relmbursement Of Expenses

Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd
Chembond Chemicals Ltd

Phiroze Sethna Private Limited

ManaSement Fees pald

Phiroze Sethna Private Limited

Phiroze Sethna Private Limited

Material Technologies Pvt Ltd

Phiroze Sethna Prlvate Limited

Loan Taken
Phiroze Sethna Private Llmited

Loans Repayment
Phiroze Sethna Private Llmited

Chemlcals Limited
Material Technologies Pvt ltd

Phiroze Sethna Private Limited
Chemicals Limited
Material Technologles Pvt Ltd

Limited

Putchas€ of Goods

Limited
Technologles PW Ltd

Ltd

Of Goods
chemicals Ltd

Sethna Private Limited

Contracl Revenue

Received

Pald

Sethha Prlvate Limited

Chemicals Limlted

Products [[C
Pald

Pald

of Flxed Assets

Sethna Private Limlted
ofConsumbale lteams

1.70

1.95

o.24

0.50

30.00

5.60

L7,1r

150.00

9.00

2.LL

217.OO

6.71

4.7'l

0.11

7

0.30

2t0.62

0-07

0.51

0.11

0.22

6.86

o.37

s7.24

0.11

6.60

15.04

0.30

7.94

12.49

o.52

76.00

10.06

M3.O3

242.66

37.73

7.80

67.51

5.46

185.34
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32 Contusent ll.blllft! od smmlhenl! CIo tre ert€ntno. pnvld.d for)

(l) cohfrgetrt liMilide!

(a) Liabilities disput€d

In@me Tsx (TDS)

. appe{ls fild wilh resp*t to:

Oujamt Value Add€d lax

(ii) Couter Gursnrs gim by ComFny for Bank cumates issued

(iii) Crpltrl commlhenlr
Eslimated amouts of onkscts maining to b€ ex@uted on
6pibl amul rod not provided for (n€t of advanes) t75.00 75.3t

Tolal

33 Flnsclsl ln3lrum€rtr - Frtr vilrc! md rtlk nmrye nent
A. Acffifrg clllltficrdon sd frl. v.lue!

The following table shows the carring amounls dd fair values offnmcial assets ed fnicial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierrchy. It des not include fair
value infomalion for fmecial assets md fmtcial liabilities nol measured at fair valu€ ifthe carying @oul is a reasonable dpproximation offair value.

Prniculsrg Fdrvrloe
hmd

pmfitmd

Frlrv.lw frrcugh
olh€r

Level I L€vel 2 L€v.l 3

Cash and esh equivalmts (Including ofrcr bsnk

.Mutul Fmds

. Equiry shar6 (Quord)

. Equity Shar6 (Unquold)
' Pref€me shaB and bonds
IEde and olher t@iwbls

29 57

t3.65

29.57

t3.55

TOTAI-

Long lem hrcwinSs (lncluding cuml
naluiN of Lone h borcwinos)
Shod (em bonowinSs
TEde and olh€r payobles

Oth6 fi mncisl liabilirics
4m.50 4m.50

Particullrs Frlr
lhrcusi

pmfitmd

Amodled Cort Totrl Level I Tolrl

Cash6ndssh equiwlents (lncludin8 orhd b*

. Mutul Fmds
' Equity Shar€s (Quored)
. Equity Shares (Unquotd)
. Prcferen€ sha6 and bnds
Irade and orhcr reiwbl6

35. l8

16.39

58.56

35.18

16.39
58.56

TOTAL

hns lem bomwings (lncludins cMetrr
mtuitv of lrn! tm borcwincs)
Shon lm borowines
Trad€ and olher p.yabls
Other financial liabilities

76.00
404.70

16.W
404.10

Fair values for financial inshments caried at amodised @si approximates thc carrying mount, ac@rdingly lhe fair valu6 ofsuch lumcial assets od fintcial liabililies have not
b@n disclosed septrately.

B. Merluremenl offrlr vilet
lnd AS 107, 'Financial Inshment _ Disclosur' requires classifcation ofthe valuation melhod offnicial inshments measured at fair value in dre Balan@ Shet, using a tlu.@ level

estinaled by dis@unting exp@ted future @nractual cash flows using prevailing mdkel interest rale cun6. The thre levels of the fair-value-hieruchy under Ind AS I 07 ee
described belo$:
kvel l: tlcimrchy in.luds finonohlinstu€nb mesd usina quotd pi@s.

Lpvel 2l The fair value offinmcial inshmenls that tre nol traded in m acliv€ mtrket de detemined using valuation t@hniques which maximise the use ofobs€nable mdk€l data
md r€ly as little as possiblc on entity spsific estinrates- lf all signilicant inputs rcquired to fair v6lue m instuenl de obseryable, the iilhm€nt is included in level 2.
L€vel 3l Ifone or nrore ofthe significmt inpuls ue not based on obsenable mdket data, thc inshment is included in level 3. e.g. udisted equity seuities.

Tmife6 beFsn L€v€lr
There de no trdsfere beN@n the leyels

C. Fhmhl drknsrgemenl
Th€ ComFny's activitiB exps it ro Crcdir risk liquidity risk and market risk.

L Rtk msrg€ment fnnewod{

fusk Mmagemenl is an integral pd of the Conpmy's plms and op€ralions. The Compoy's bord of dimtos has overall responsibility for the establishm€nt md ovesight of tfie
Compmy risk mmagement fimework. The boad of dir@lore is resFnsible for developing ad monitoring the Compily risk meagenent policies.
Thc audit @Imin@ overses how mtragement monitore mnpliane with the Company's risk managenrent policies andpreedues;ed miews the adequacy of the risk mmagemcnt
framework in rclalion to the risks faccd by the Company. The audit @mitl@ is assisted in its oversight rolc by inlemal audit. Inkmd audil undedakes bo$ regulu md ad he
reviews of risk mmagement @ntuls ild preedur6,lhe results of which are reponed to the audil @lmitt@.

lL Credla drk

Credit risk is the risk offinancial loss to the Compmy ifa
Compey's r*ivables from customers md investm€nts in

customer or @unlerpany b a financial inshment fails lo m@l its @nfactual obligalions, and eis€s principally fron thc
mutual funds, bonds etc.

The carrying mount oflmancisl assets reprsents $€ maximum credit

Tnde ed otur re€lvrble!

Credil risk is the risk ofpossible default by the @unter pdty
The Compmy nmage credit risk through various intemal plicies

r1!t
]'i\ t'

over credit exposure. Th6e tre mmaged by way of selling vffious

:{
Based on prior experiene and e assessment of the

cuslomers.
sufficient provision is m6d for credit risk wherever crcdil is extended to



Crlh md crlh eautvrlent.
Credit risk from balm€s sith ban-ks is nmaged by the Compmy's treasury depffienl in a@rdm@ with the Compey's policy. Inveshent of surplus funds e made in msinly in
Other thd lrade ild other r@ivsbles, the Compmy has no other lmocid asseb that are past due but not inpaired.

n Ltquldlt rtk

Liquidity risk is drc risk that the Conpmy will not be Mle to m@t its fmecial obligations as they bone due. The Company milagc its liquidity risk by ensuring, as ftr as
possiblq lhat it will always have suficienl liquidity to met ib liabiliriG when due, under both nomal ffd shssed @nditions, wilhout incudng una@ptable losses or risk to the
Compmy's reputation.

The Compmy has obtained fund md non-fund based working capital lines from vrious banfrs. The Conpdy also @nstmtly monilors funding options available in lhe debt dd
capital milkets with aview tomaintaining fuecial fiexibility.

lv, Mrrkel rlrk

Mdket risk is lhe risk of loss of future emings, fair values or future cash flows that m6y result frcm advese changs in mtrk€t rates ild pri6 (such s interest rotes, foreign
curency exchangc ral6 ) Milket risk is aftibulMle lo all market risk-sensilive linmcial inshments, all foreis cw€ncy r*ivablc mrl payables md 6ll shon bm md l;ngnem
debt The Compmy is exposed to mdket risk primarily related to foreign exchmge rale risk, interet rate risk md the muket value of ib inveshenls. Thus, the Compoy,s exposurc
to meket risk is a fuction of investing md borowing activilies dd revenue generating md operating activities in foreign cunencies.

.) Curremy rllk

The Compnay is exposed to cunency risk to the extent lhat $ere is a mismatch betuen the curencies in which sales, purchase, trd other expenses tre denominated ud rhe
functional cumcy of lhe Compmy The fuctional curency of the compmy is Indiil Rupes (INR). The curenciG in which th6e trmaclions are primdily denominated ee
EURO md USD.
ErFlure locurrercy dlk
The sllmary quantitalive dala mount lhe Company's exposure lo cwncy risk as repoded to the mdagemen( of the Company is as follows:

The Compmy has snte.ed into foruard @ntsacls to hedge the foreign cMency risks trising from @outs dsignabd in foreign curency. The @unter pdy to such foNtrd @nfact
is a ban-k. FoNdd @nfacts outstdding at the yed €nd rc:

^ f,tDorure rn

' buv/rell
As at 3l/03/2024 As 

^t311312023
ForeiS Cwncy Indian Cwency For€i$ CMency Indian Clr!]@cy

USD Buv

Foreign Cuenoy Exposm at the y6r €nd nor
b hedsed by dsivativ€ insMent:

As^t3ll03l2024 Asra3tl3l2023

For€ign Cwenoy hdian Cwncy Forcign Cu€ncy Indisn Cu€noy

US Dollan
Euo
US Dollatr

b) hteE t nle rlik

0.m
0.m
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.m
0.m

0.m
0.m
0.00

Buv
BuY
sn

Interest rate risk is the risk lhat dre fair value or futore cash flows ola finmcial inshnent will Iluchate beause ofchdg€s in markel inlerest rates. Inveslment @mifle mmages

Compmy. The Compmy's exposures to interGt rate risk is not significant.
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(a)

T[ Reconcill|don
Tte in@ne bx€xFnsemnsists oflhe

Padiculars

Defned Tax Exrnse
Shod(Ex6t pmvision of lnon€ Tax of

Tu erpeNe for the y€ii

Rmnciliorion of hx expetrse and rhe ammting
O) prcfit muhiplid by Indiab bx Rate

ftolit bfore in@me hx wn*
Indian sblutoN inome hx rate
E@ted Inome Tax exrnses

2023-2024 2022,2023

(Rs. ln lakhs) (Rs. ln lakhs)

4.98
9.76

0.00

to 44
073

(0.5e)

Tax eftst ofamoub which arc nor deductibt€
(allowable) in elculatins bnble in6me:
ln6me ex€mDl ftom in@mc taxs
Additioml allowanG/dcluction
Transitiof, qain

Olhem
Cr@r Tax (A)

Pan B
D€fered Tax Etr{t at lhe rate of
Depreialion
In6henls at Fai Value
Gmtuiw
MAT crenn
Oiher D€fercd bx Assel
Provision for Doubttul Debts

Defmei T6x (B)

t3.47
16.69%

2.25

4.25
16.690/o

0.7 t

21.22
(20.50)

(0.59)

_-___212_-_______!p.8r

0.02

t6.69% t6.69%
6.58
4.6

(0.1 l)
Q.13\

t.93

0.20

5.67

T[ Erp€Ne (A+B]

Fol (astury &Talatl
Ac6untanb

t0 57

whrch Ns an 8mulh8 sonware lor mainbining its bsks of a6u(shall us€ an a@utin8 s{twar€ where 6ft is fearwof r@rding audir uaitof ach and ery kansctionand ffficrcroring an
€dil log of soh chanS€ mde to Se hks of a@Mt alonS wi$ fr€ &le when such changE w€re nade and msuing rhat &e audir rait smor b di$bld.

fre comFnv ues an a@uling sRware for mainbhinS books of a@ul which hs a farue of rerding audn kail and dit lo8 faoiliry and sal has ben opemlive tkoughout the Iimncial ysr for rh€
hNaotions 

'wrd 
in lhe sonwar€ imFcring boks of ammt al lhe appli€rion lewl. The $nwar beins mamsd on pubtio ot;ud, lls do not have aess ro enable, aiiste, aecrivare orLmpcr wirrr

lhe audit trail setins.

'n'e Company also u6 snwarc for patroll spplierion
mqlilid sl lh€ applistion l€wl.

In both lhe sonware, thm is a fsrm of audit log for @rding audit rail and rh€ eme auot be disbled or

The audit tail festw is not dsbled ar the &laba* tev€t in GFr of rh6c sonware.

ff The pr€vious yetr figws have ben regrouped, resll@ated or r@lassified wherev€r n@ssary lo @nfom to cMent y€tr classification and prGentalion.

For end on b€half ot tha Board ot DhdoE of
A5 per our repon of even date anached Oremos Chmiel3lndie Prlvab Limild

r.{v\- (hJ
Dhlren P.

Partnea

1,,
..1)

oi ciiAliTgitii) r'
UtJTAi'JTt
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Memb€rshlp No. F/41857
Pl.c€ r Mumbal
Date: llth May 2024

Semeer V. Shah
Dlredor
Dln: m10572t
Place: Navl Muhbal
Date: llth May 2024

Rashml S. Gavll

Dlradol
Dln : 08&1649
Pla@ | Navl Mumbal
D.te : llth May 2024


